ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 17, 2005
1:36 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or John Cowdery, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Gene Therri aul t
Senat or Al bert Kookesh

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

Overview Presentation: Depar t ment of Transportation/ Public
Facilities — Briefing on Construction Force Accounts, Leasing
and Purchasi ng of Equi pnent Conpared to Private Sector

Overvi ew Presentation: CGeotechnical Drilling
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

Ms. Nona W/ son, Legislative Liaison

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M . Frank Richards, Engi neer

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Delivered the overvi ew presentation

M. Mark O Brien, Contract O ficer

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 17, 2005



M. Howard Thies, Director

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M. Gary Hogi ns, Engi neer

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M. Dave Stanl ey, GCeol ogi st

Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities

3132 Channel Dr.

Juneau, AK 99801-7898

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M. Kyle Brown

Di scovery Drilling

1134 dive Lane

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M. Brian Wlle

Al aska Water Well Association

13161 Shel burne Rd

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M . Davi d Har per

Al pine Drilling

PO Box 110496

Anchor age, AK 99511

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M. Hal Ingalls

Denali Drilling

6780 Lauden Circle

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M. Jay Johnson
JJC

9180 Wbl fram
Juneau, AK 99801

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 17, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M. Dick Cavanaugh
No address provi ded
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

M. Mke MlIler
No address provided
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on the overview presentation

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR CHARLIE HUGEA NS called the Senate Transportation Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:36:04 PM Present were Senators
John Cowdery, Hollis French, and Chair Charlie Huggins.

1:37: 03 PM

IVS. NONA W LSON, | egi sl ative | i al son, Depart ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOI/PF), introduced the
overvi ew.

Overvi ew Presentation: Departnent of Transportation

1:38: 01 PM

MR. FRANK RI CHARDS, chief maintenance and operations engineer,
DOT/ PF, briefed the commttee on Force Account Construction and
Geot echnical Drilling.

1:38:58 PM
Mai nt enance & Operations M ssion
Qper at e, mai nt ai n, saf eguard and control t he state’s

infrastructure system of hi ghways, airports and harbors.

Regi onal boundari es
H ghway/ Road M | eage:
Central Region — 1707 CL mles
Northern Region — 3415 CL mles
Sout heast Region — 490 CL mles
DOT&PF Mai nt enance Stations
84 stations statew de
Nat i onal Hi ghway System
2113 center line mles
Al aska Hi ghway System
1508 center line mles
DOT&PF Airports
258 State-owned Airports

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- March 17, 2005



1:41: 05 PM

What is Force Account Construction?

Definition: 23 CFR 635.201 Subpart B
The term force account shal | mean the direct
performance of highway construction work by a State
hi ghway agency, a county, a railroad, or a public
utility conpany by use of |abor, equipnent, materials,
and supplies furnished by them and used under their
di rect control

1:42: 06 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked M. Richards whether force accounting was
using state or federal noney to do work on a state project.

MR. RI CHARDS answered yes. The federal dollars prescribe certain
cost analysis. It is wusing capital dollars to cover state
salaries and equipnment costs. It also includes the cost of
materials and | eased equi pnent through private vendors.

SENATOR CONDERY asked whet her the DOI/ PF considers unknown costs
when bi ddi ng j obs.

MR. RI CHARDS responded conceptually yes.

1.44.33 PM

MR MARK O BRIEN, chief contract officer, DOI/PF, clarified
there are tw different kinds of force accounts. One force
account refers to a time and nmaterials contract, which is done
under an existing contract where DOl encounters unknown
expenses. The contractor gives those expenses to the DOI. The
other force account is where DOT uses state forces to acconplish
the entire project.

SENATOR FRENCH said it sounds |Ilike force accounting and
privatization are on two different sides of the |edger.

MR. RI CHARDS responded contracting is on the other side of the
| edger .

CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. R chards to clarify public interest
findi ngs.

MR. RICHARDS inforned the commttee a public interest findings
is a cost determnation of what it would take to perform the
wor k. DOT conpares what it would cost to hire out a contractor
as opposed to doing the work using state enpl oyees.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 17, 2005



1:46:45 PM
MR. RICHARDS explained if a project would be less costly using
state resources they opt to go with a force account approach.

CHAIR HUGEA NS asked M. Richards to describe the m ninum
essential elenents that cause the project to go to a private
contract.

MR. RI CHARDS explained it would be a typical design project that
utilized plans and specifications that defined the work to be
acconplished. Contractors bid based on that information. If it
is cost effective to use a contractor, DOT wll opt for that
nmeasur e.

CHAI R HUGG NS asked whether a public interest finding determ nes
whether it will be force account work or a private contract.

MR. O BRI EN i ndi cat ed yes.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. O Brien how nuch discretion the DOT has
when maki ng the deci sion.

MR. O BRIEN responded if the public interest finding failed then
DOT coul d not conduct the work using state forces.

CHAIR HUGA NS further inquired whether there was a percentage
factor invol ved.

MR. O BRI EN advi sed there was a 28 percent savings factor.

MR. RICHARDS rem nded the commttee the type of work they are
tal king about is a maintenance or preventative type activity.

1:50: 42 PM
SENATOR CONDERY inquired if DOl pays the same wages on force
accounts as a contractor would pay.

MR. RICHARDS answered state enployees are paid the bargaining
contract.

SENATOR COWDERY stated a contractor has to pay Davis-Bacon wage
det erm nati ons.

MR, HAL I NGALLS, Denali Drilling, interrupted to say he cannot

believe the DOTI can save 28 percent by doing construction work
thenselves. He said if that is true then the State of Al aska

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 17, 2005



should do all the construction work in the state. The private
sector cannot conpete.

1:53: 12 PM
SENATOR COMNDERY asked M. O Brien whether the DOT naintains a
contingency fund for oversight.

MR O BRIEN replied there are no contingencies. The state does
not have a line itemfor that.

MR. RICHARDS said under the State Transportation | nprovenent
Program (STIP), the DOT estimtes the dollar amount to perform
the work w thout contingency. He added a legislative audit was
conpleted on public interest findings. The audit indicates the
processes and nethodologies used by the DOT appear to be
st rai ght f orwar d.

1.55:44 PM

MR. KYLE BROWN, Discovery Drilling, testified he does not
understand how the DOI can nake a savings determ nation when
there has not been a bid process on a job. Contractors do not
have access to bids.

MR. RI CHARDS responded the public interest findings are public
record. To nmake that determ nation, the DOT conpares |ike work.
For exanple, if the job is a chip seal in Ketchikan, they
conpare the cost for the state to do the work wth actual
contract bids.

MR. BROWN asserted contractors and DOT workl oads vary nonth-to-
nont h and year-to-year.

SENATOR CONDERY commented three years ago the DOT performed chip
seal work on the Seward Hi ghway, which didn’t go to bid. It was
an experinmental project where chips were hauled on state
equi pnent from Fairbanks. He stated he does not believe a cost
anal ysis was done for that project.

MR. RICHARDS agreed. He clarified the project was done in 1997
on the Seward H ghway. The DOT |earns frominput fromthe public
and fromthe Legislature.

MR. RI CHARDS resuned the Powerpoint presentation:
1:59: 38 PM

Brief H story on Force Account |ssues
FHWA shift fromBuild GQut to M ntenance

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 17, 2005



Prevent ati ve Mii nt enance
G owth of Deferred M ntenance
Contractor vs. State Forces

2:01:46 PM
FHWA Preventative Mai nt enance and Pavenent Rehabilitation
Fundi ng

2:03:46 PM

Where i s DOT&PF using Force Account
Central region
Sout heast region
Nort hern regi on

2:05:33 PM
MR. RICHARDS explained DOT wuses chip seal in the Southeast
regi on because they do not have access to hot mx due to |lack of
avai lability of hot plants. DOl can get hot mx in the Central
region. Chip seal and hot mx are essentially the same cost to
the state.

2:07:11 PM
SENATOR CONDERY asked M. Richard to explain recycled asphalt.

MR. RI CHARDS explained recycled asphalt is ground used asphalt
m xed with oil.

2:08: 29 PM
SENATOR CONDERY stated the cost of recycled asphalt was | ow.

MR. RI CHARDS agreed and said recycled asphalt is a coomodity and
a benefit to state.

2:09:17 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO asked whether wused asphalt that was
not recycled was waste material .

MR HOMRD THIES, director, DOI/PF, reported sone people buy
used asphalt from the DOI. They try not to waste it because it
does have val ue.

MR. RI CHARDS resuned the Powerpoint presentation:
2:10: 02 PM
Rent al Equi pnment Requested by Northern Region

2:11: 34 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 17, 2005



CHAIR HUGGA NS stated a private contractor could | ook at the cost
of the equipnment and wonder how the DOT could determ ne that
force would be the right method.

MR. I NGALLS interrupted to claim the list provided was enough
equi pnent to declare the State of Alaska a nmjor construction
conpany. He said if the state wants to be in the construction
busi ness the private sector will fight to keep them out.

2:13:12 PM
MR. BROWN asked whet her the people who operate the equipnent are
state workers. He inquired as to their |evel of expertise.

MR. THI ES responded they were a mmintenance crew. They are not
buil ding construction roads. They are using the equipnent to
patch holes and do mnor repair work. It is not the intention of
the DOT to put contractors out of work.

CHAIR HUGGA NS asked M. Thies to explain the use of the John
Deere 550 Dozer.

MR THHES said it was on the Dalton H ghway for wuse for
patching. It is a 60-day rental from the private sector at a
cost of approxi mately $1,500-2,000 a nonth.

2:16:43 PM

MR. RICHARDS said the Governor challenged the DOI to reduce
costs and so they surplused equipnent that was not being used.
So far they have surplused 250 pi eces of equipnent.

2:17:56 PM
SENATOR CONDERY asked for a list of equipnment the DOT owns.

MR. RI CHARDS sai d he woul d provi de one before the next neeting.

2:18: 38 PM
MR. RI CHARDS resuned the Powerpoint presentation:

Mai nt enance and Operations
General Fund Authorizations
Hi storic Construction Expenditures
AVHS, Hi ghways and Avi ation

2:20: 55 PM
Hi ghway and Avi ation Prograns

2:21:58 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 17, 2005



Exanpl e of Force Account Hi ghway Project
End of Powerpoint presentation

2:23:54 PM
Question and Answer session

SENATOR COMNDERY asked for a reasonable limt on the use of force
accounts.

MR. RICHARDS gave the Northern region as an exanple. He stated
DOT was at their limt wthout adding personnel. They are doing
an 8 mllion dollar project fromDalton H ghway to Cordova.

SENATOR CONDERY reiterated he would like the DOT to define for
the commttee a reasonable anmount to place as a limt on the use
of a force account.

MR. RICHARDS stated the DOT would like to have the flexibility
to not have a defined upper limt. Flexibility allows them to
better manage their noney.

Overvi ew Presentation: CGeotechnical Drilling
2:27: 44 PM
DAVE  STANLEY, chi ef geol ogi st DOT gave a Powerpoint
presentation titled Geotechnical Drilling.

Geotechnical Drilling Explained
Program St at us
Program Cost Contr ol

2:29:47 PM
SENATOR COWDERY asked whether there are engineering conpanies
avai lable in Al aska that certifies the public findings.

MR. STANLEY answered yes. The DOTI contracts out 50 percent of
t he desi gn work.

2:31: 09 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked why the State of Alaska has to do the other
50 percent of the work.

MR. STANLEY stated several reasons. The DOl has been drilling
for 50 years. It is part of their core function. Geologists,
foundati on engi neers, project managers and project designers all
work as team to provide the design for geotechnical work. The
experti se devel oped over the years, and the equi pnment nakes the
DOT well suited. The DOT is also cheaper than the private

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- March 17, 2005



sector. In 2002 and 2003 cost studies showed the DOT could do
the work for $100 an hour cheaper than the private sector.

2:32: 59 PM
SENATOR COMNDERY asked whet her retirenents and PERS were
calculated in the study.

MR. STANLEY admitted he could not answer the question. He added
the DOT does not |ook at costs in the sane way the private
sector does.

2:33.53 PM
MR. BROWN asked for a copy of the cost anal ysis.

MR. STANLEY inplied he would get one for the commttee nenbers.

2:35:30 PM
MR. STANLEY resuned the Powerpoint presentation:

Program st at us.
10 drill rigs located throughout the state
Drilling staff
Typi cal crew size
Contract drilling
Cost conpari son

SENATOR CONDERY asked the lifetime of a drilling rig.

MR. STANLEY responded 15 years.

2:37.:48 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO i nquired whether they used a timng device
to collect the nunber of hours the drill is in operation.

MR. STANLEY responded yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked whether a private operation would
have used a drilling rig nore often that the state over a course
of 10 years.

MR. STANLEY said he did not know He resuned the Powerpoint
present ati on.

2:39:13 PM
Program cost contro
Managing drill rigs to neet demand and reduce cost

Surplus old drill rigs

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 17, 2005



HEWCF credits al ready accrued
Make fleet nore versatile and cost effective
Managi ng staff |evel to neet denmand

2:41: 27 PM
CHAI R HUGE NS asked how much a track unit costs.

MR. STANLEY responded they were a mini nrum of $250, 000.

2:43. 04 PM
CHAI R HUGGE NS i nqui red about the salary of a crew | ead operator

MR. STANLEY advised it was around $23 an hour.

2:45: 14 PM
MR. KYLE BROWN, Discovery Drilling, testified construction is
not the role of governnent. He clained state equipnent

utilization in the past has been margi nal to poor.

2:48: 08 PM
MR. BROWN voiced there were mmjor inefficiencies of equipnent
usage within the DOT and gave several exanples.

2:51:19 PM

MR. BROW alleged state enployees have no notivation to exce
because of restrictions on their union contracts. He expressed
frustration that taxpayer noney is wused to buy expensive
equi pnent that the governnent is using to take work away from
the private sector.

2:52:11 PM

VR. STANLEY advised the commttee the DOl has drafted
specifications for the state equipnment fleet. Al so the state
does not do environnental drilling due to lack of training as
well as liability issues.

2:53: 47 PM

MR. DAVID HARPER, Alpine Drilling, asserted state government
should only be involved in providing services and | abor for the
peopl e when the private sector cannot.

2:56: 50 PM

MR. BRIAN WLLE, Arrow Punp and Well Service/Alaska Water Wl
Associ ation, agreed with the other contractor’s concerns and
added a personal experience.

2:57:50 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 17, 2005



MR. | NGALLS pointed out force accounting should not be used
wi t hout bidding jobs. He asserted each year things change that
could affect a job bid. He maintained the state does not take
into consideration unknown costs, therefore the end total cost
of the job is never justified.

3. 06: 10 PM
MR. DI CK CAVANAUCH al | eged the DOT was usi ng voodoo accounti ng.

MR MKE MLLER contended contractors never see the public
interest findings. He asked whether they could be put on the
website along procurenents. He disputed DOT"s claim of a 28
percent savings when state workers performthe work.

3:11: 54 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS announced the conmttee was out of tinme. There
will be a follow up neeting in the future. He comrented the

public interest findings seem to be a weak link and asked the
DOT representatives to work on making it easier for the public
to see.

There being no further business to conme before the conmttee,
Chair Huggi ns adjourned the neeting at 3:15:28 PM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- March 17, 2005



